
                     POL K  CO U N T Y,  WI S CO N S I N 
W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

 
                                       Notice of Meeting and Agenda 

Polk County Board of Supervisors 
100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 

Polk County Government Center - County Board Room 
Tuesday, July 18th, 2017, at 6:00 p.m. 

Regular Business Meeting 
Open Session 

 
Order of Business: 

1. Call to Order 
2. Receipt of Evidence and Opinion on Proper Notice 
3. Roll Call 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Time of Reflection 
6. Approval of Agenda  
7. Matters Offered For Adoption on Consent Agenda: 

a. Consideration/corrections to the published minutes from June 20, 2017, County 
Board Meeting  

b. Resolution 47-17: Resolution to Grant a Zoning District Change & to Amend Zoning District 
Map for Town of Eureka 

8. Public Comments –3 minutes per person –not to exceed 30 minutes total 
9. County Board Chair Report 
10. Receipt of Reports from County Board Standing Committees 
11. Administrator’s Report 
**Following the Administrator’s Report, the County Board will convene as the Committee of 
the Whole on matters noticed herein.  The Committee of the Whole may receive 
information, deliberate and provide the County Board with recommendation concerning 
such noticed Subject matters.  The Committee of the Whole may not take final action on 
such matter.  Once the Committee of the Whole adjourns and the County board reconvenes 
to conduct legislative activity, the County Board may take action on such matters noticed 
herein and recommended by the Committee of the Whole, only upon two-thirds majority 
vote of members present to take up and act upon such matters. 
 
12.  Committee of the Whole:       

a. Discussion and Recommendation Concerning Uses on Stower Seven Lakes Trail, 
including recommendation on Resolution No. 43-17: Resolution Authorizing the 
Development of a Multi-Use, Multi-Season Trail Management Plan for Stower Seven 
Lakes Trail.  

b. Receipt of information and Discussion Concerning Progress and Development of the 
Highway Facility Project, including facility design.   

c. Adjournment of Committee of the Whole 
 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


Polk County Board of Supervisors       

2 
 

Following adjournment of the Committee of the Whole, the County Board will reconvene as 
a legislative body to take up, consider and act upon the subject matters identified herein, as 
follows: 

 
13. Reconvene as County Board 

 
14. Motion to Act on Matters Considered and Recommended by the Committee of the 

Whole, as noticed in number 12, above. 
15. Proposed Resolutions and Ordinances Received for First Reading and Referral to 

Committee (to be considered at the August 15, 2017, County Board meeting unless the 
County Board authorizes a second reading and vote on final passage at this meeting. 
This action has been requested for Resolutions/Ordinances marked with an asterisk (*)). 
  
a. Resolution No. 48-17; Resolution to Amend County Finance Policy to Require 

Additional Budget Documentation from External Agencies – To be referred to the 
General Government Committee 
 

16. Proposed Resolution and Ordinances Offered for Adoption or Enactment at June 20th, 
2017, meeting: 
On Recommendation by General Government Committee: 
d. Resolution No. 16-17: Resolution to Amend 2017 County Budget To Provide For 

Consulting Services Concerning the Repair or Restoration of the Polk County 
Fairground Grandstand    

e. Resolution No. 45-17: Resolution to Update Designation of Persons Authorized to 
Request Coverage under Legal Loss Prevention Services Endorsement of Wisconsin 
County Mutual Insurance Corporation Liability Policies  

On Recommendation by Health & Human Services Board: 
f. Resolution No. 42-17: Resolution to Revise Private Rates of Nursing Home Care at 

Golden Age Manor Nursing Home  
On Recommendation by Environmental Services Committee: 
g. Resolution No. 43-17: Resolution Authorizing the Development of a Multi-Use, 

Multi-Season Trail Management Plan for Stower Seven Lakes Trail 
17. Supervisors Announcements  
18. Adjourn 
 
This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities 
wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at least 24 
hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests 
are confidential. 

 



1 
 

 

          Polk County Board of Supervisors 
100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 

Polk County Government Center - County Board Room 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, June 20th, 2017  

 
Chairman Dean Johansen called the regular June 20th, 2017 meeting of the Polk County Board 
of Supervisors to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of receiving evidence of proper 
notice. The County Clerk stated that the notice of meeting was properly posted in the 
Government Center Building, posted on the County website, and published in a legal 
newspaper in accordance with Wisconsin Statute Section 985.02 the week of June 12, 2017. In 
addition, the Office of the County Clerk distributed on June 9, 2017 copies of such notice of 
meeting and proposed resolutions to supervisors via e-mail and mail. 
The Amended Agenda was posted in the Government Center building, published on the County 
website, and copies of such notice of meeting distributed to the Supervisors via email and mail 
on June 14, 2017. The Board received from Corporation Counsel that the original agenda was 
posted in accordance with Wisconsin Open Meetings Law and Rules of Order. The Board also 
received from Corporation Counsel the verbal legal opinion that the amended meeting notice 
was posted in accordance with the substantiative and timeline provisions of Wisconsin Open 
Meetings Law and that it would be necessary for the Board to act to Suspend the Rules of 
Order, pursuant to Article 3, Paragraph 4, to approve the amended agenda, conforming to the 
amended meeting notice issued and posted on June 14th, 2017.   
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for a motion to suspend Rules of Order to approve 
Amended Agenda. Motion (Edgell/Bonneprise) to suspend the Rules, Article 3, ¶ 2, pursuant to 
Article 3, ¶ 4, for the purposes of adopting as the agenda the amended notice of meeting/ 
agenda issued and posted on June 14, 2017.  Chairman Johansen called for the vote on said 
motion. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of taking roll call. Fifteen County 
Board Supervisors were present.    
 
Chairman Johansen led the County Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a Time of Reflection.  No reflection was received by board. 



2 
 

 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor approval of Agenda as amended. Motion 
(Bonneprise/Jepsen) to approve amended agenda.  
Motion (Olson/Route) to amend the Amended Agenda to strike Resolution No. 33-17: 
Resolution to Authorize Offer of Donation of Polk County Museum to the Polk County Historical 
Society from the Amended Agenda. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to 
amend the Amended Agenda striking Resolution No. 33-17 from the agenda. Motion to amend 
the Amended Agenda striking Resolution No. 33-17 carried unanimously by voice vote. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to approve the Amended Agenda as 
amended. Motion to approve Amended Agenda as amended carried unanimously by voice 
vote. Resolution No. 33-17 stricken from agenda. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, approval of the Consent Agenda. Motion 
(O’Connell/Jepsen) to approve the Consent agenda as published. Chairman Johansen called for 
a voice vote on the motion to adopt Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously by voice 
vote.  Resolution 40-17: Resolution to Grant a Zoning District Change & to Amend Zoning District Map 
for Town of Alden and Resolution 41-17: Resolution to Grant a Zoning District Change & to Amend 
Zoning District Map for Town of Alden adopted in consent agenda. Minutes from May 23rd, 2017 
approved as published. 
 
Time was given for public comment. Board received public comment. 
 
Chairman Johansen presented the County Board Chair report. Chair exercised prerogative to 
speak to the procedure of resolutions on agenda for first reading. First reading resolutions are 
referred to the appropriate Committee for recommendation to the County Board. Public may 
appear at committee meetings for public comment on resolutions prior to second reading at 
County Board meeting.  
 
Chairman Johansen announced the appointment of Joe Demulling to the Ad Hoc Committee on 
Fairgrounds Infrastructure (replacing Craig Moriak). Chairman Johansen called for a motion to 
confirm said appointment. Motion (Jepsen/Luke) to confirm appointment as stated. Chairman 
Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to confirm appointment of Joe Demulling to the 
Ad Hoc Committee on Fairgrounds Infrastructure. Motion to confirm appointment of Joe 
Demulling carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Chairman Johansen called upon Administrator Frey to present monthly administrator’s report. 
County Board received written report from County Board Standing Committees from 
Administrator Frey. County Board received hand-out detailing estimates for Fairgrounds 
Grandstand/Bleacher options. 
 
Administrator provided updates on the spring clean-up day which was very successful and 
hiring updates on the Jail Captain position. Other updates included upcoming project of 
cleaning and painting main entry area of government center, upcoming management training, 



3 
 

update on technology work group, and formation/meeting of emergency housing committee. 
Board will receive Annual Reports from departments in July. 
 
Chairman Johansen called the Board in recess at 6:40 p.m. Chairman Johansen called the Board 
back in session at 6:48 p.m.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to convene as Committee of the Whole at 6:48 p.m. 
Motion (Demulling/Masters) to convene as Committee of the Whole. Chairman Johansen 
called for a voice vote on the motion to convene as Committee of the Whole.  Motion carried 
by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Chairman Johansen called the Board in recess at 7:38 p.m. 
Chairman called Committee of the Whole back in session at 7:43 p.m.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adjourn Committee of the Whole session. Motion 
(Masters/Prichard) to adjourn Committee of the Whole session. Chairman Johansen called for 
a voice vote on the motion to adjourn Committee of the Whole session and reconvene into 
regular County Board session. Motion to adjourn Committee of the Whole session and 
reconvene to regular session (7:43 p.m.) carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for a motion to move Resolution No. 44-17: Resolution to 
Authorize Procurement of Architectural & Engineering Services for Highway Facility and 
Resolution No. 46-17: Amendment to Polk County ATV and UTV Route Ordinance from First 
reading to action items. Motion (Jepsen/Route) to move Resolutions 44-17 and 46-17 to action 
items. Chair Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to move Resolutions No 44-17 and 
46-17 to action items. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.  

Chairman Johansen called to the floor first reading of resolutions:  
Resolution No. 42-17: Resolution to Revise Private Rates of Nursing Home Care at Golden Age 
Manor Nursing Home – To be referred to Health & Human Services Board  

Resolution No. 43-17: Resolution Authorizing the Development of a Multi-Use, Multi-Season 
Trail Management Plan for Stower Seven Lakes Trail.  -To be referred to Environmental Services  

Resolution No. 45-17: Resolution to Update Designation of Persons Authorized to Request 
Coverage under Legal Loss Prevention Services Endorsement of Wisconsin County Mutual 
Insurance Corporation Liability Policies –To be referred to General Government 

Chairman Johansen called for a motion to declare Resolutions 42-17, 43-17, 45-17 passing first 
reading and referred to appropriate committees for consideration and recommendation. 
Motion (Jepsen/Bonneprise) to consider Resolutions No 42-17, 43-17, and 45-17 as passing 
first reading and refer resolutions to appropriate committees for further consideration and 
recommendation. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to consider 
resolutions passing first reading.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. Second reading of 
the above referenced resolutions are scheduled for the July 18th, 2017 County Board meeting. 



4 
 

Chairman Johansen called to the floor for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 44-17: Resolution 
to Authorize Procurement of Architectural & Engineering Services for Highway Facility.  Motion 
(Masters/Luke) to adopt Resolution No. 44-17.  

Administrator Frey addressed Resolution 44-17, advising an amendment is needed on 
Resolution 44-17 as follows:  Insert name “Barrientos & Ayres” in line 17 as selected 
architectural and engineering services firm for the Highway Facility. 

Chairman Johansen called to the floor for a motion to amend Resolution 44—17 to add name of 
architectural and engineering services firm. Motion (Prichard/O’Connell) to amend Resolution 
44-17: Resolution to Authorize Procurement of Architectural & Engineering Services for 
Highway Facility:  Inserting “Barrientos & Ayres” on line 17 as selection of architectural and 
engineering services firm for the Highway Facility. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on 
the motion to adopt Resolution 44-17 as amended. Motion to adopt Resolution 44-17 as 
amended carried by unanimous voice vote. Resolution No. 44-17 adopted as amended. 

Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 46-17: Amendment to Polk 
County ATV and UTV Route Ordinance. Motion (Jepsen/Luke) to adopt Ordinance 46-17. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Ordinance 46-17. Motion to 
adopt Ordinance 46-17 carried by unanimous voice vote. Ordinance No. 46-17 adopted. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 16-17: Resolution to Amend 2017 County 
Budget to Provide for Consulting Services Concerning the Repair or Restoration of the Polk 
County Fairground Grandstand.  Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution 16-
17. Supervisor Jepsen addressed Resolution No. 16-17. Motion (Masters/Jepsen) to postpone 
action on Resolution 16-17 until July 18th, 2017 County Board Meeting to ensure due diligence 
in determining appropriate course of action to take regarding Fairground Grandstand. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to postpone Resolution No. 16-17. 
Motion to postpone Resolution No. 16-17 to July 18, 2017 County Board Meeting carried by 
unanimous voice vote. Resolution No. 16-17 postponed. 

Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. Resolution No. 34-17:  Resolution 
Concerning Additional Dog License Tax.  Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt 
Resolution 34-17. Motion (Masters/Olson) to adopt Resolution No. 34-17. Chairman Johansen 
called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 34-17. Motion to adopt 
Resolution 34-17 carried by roll call vote, 10 yes, 4 no, 1 abstaining (Voting no: Supervisors 
LaBlanc, Luke, Bonneprise, and Demulling, Abstaining: Supervisor Nelson). Resolution No. 34-17 
adopted. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. Resolution No. 35-17: Resolution to 
Amend 2017 Budget to Incorporate Carry-forward Funds. Chairman Johansen called for a 
motion to adopt Resolution 35-17. Motion (Masters/Arcand) to adopt Resolution No. 35-17. 
Recommendation from General Government Committee to amend Resolution No. 35-17 to 
delete line 21- ($6,000 in the recycling equipment replacement account for recycling garage 
door). Motion Masters/Jepsen to amend Resolution No. 35-17 to delete line 21. Chairman 



5 
 

Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 35-17 as amended. 
Motion to adopt Resolution 35-17 as amended carried by unanimous voice vote. Resolution No. 
35-17 adopted as amended. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 36-17: Resolution to Establish and Fund 
Highway Facility Capital Account. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution 
36-17. Motion (Demulling/Isakson) to adopt Resolution No. 36-17. Chairman Johansen called 
for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 36-17. Motion to adopt Resolution No. 
36-17 carried by unanimous voice vote. Resolution No. 36-17 adopted. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 38-17: Resolution to Amend the 2017 
Polk County Budget to Provide Funding for the Public Work Bridge Replacement on County 
Road J. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution 38-17. Motion 
(Luke/Arcand) to adopt Resolution No. 38-17. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the 
motion to adopt Resolution No. 38-17. Motion to adopt Resolution No. 38-17 carried by 
unanimous voice vote. Resolution No. 38-17 adopted. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Ordinance No. 39-17: Manure and Water Quality 
Management Ordinance. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Ordinance 39-17. 
Motion (O’Connell/Edgell) to adopt Ordinance No. 39-17. Chairman Johansen called for a voice 
vote on the motion to adopt Ordinance No. 39-17. Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 39-17 
carried by unanimous voice vote. Ordinance No. 39-17 adopted. 
 
Time was given for Supervisors Reports/Announcements. Board received reports from 
Supervisors. 
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Bonneprise/Masters to adjourn. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion to adjourn carried 
by unanimous voice vote.  Chairman Johansen declared meeting adjourned 8:34 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Sharon E. Jorgenson, Polk County Clerk 

 
 
 
 




























	County Board Agenda 7-18-2017
	Minutes 6-20-2017
	Res 47-17 Amend Zoning for Eureka
	Res 48-17  Amend County Finance Policy
	Res 16-17 Amend Budget - Fairground Grandstand
	Res 45-17 WI Mutual Ins
	Res 42-17 Golden Age Manor
	Res 43-17 Stower Trail

